
From: Johnston, Sarah
To: Defillipo, Anthony; Smukler, Fortuna; Kramer, Barbara; Villard, Paule; Fleurimond, McKenzie; Joseph,Michael;

Smith, Phyllis
Cc: Scott, Esmond; Bernard, Andrise; Amole, Shade; McHugh,Horace A.; Davis, Berta A.; Ragoonan, Sharon
Subject: term limits repeated inquiries
Date: Friday, February 7, 2020 2:41:00 PM
Attachments: DOC075.pdf

Re_ Probable vacancy in Martell seat.pdf
WS email and opinion.pdf
text messages between JO and JS.PDF
Term limit opinions and notes.pdf
RE_ NMB eligible mayoral candidates.pdf
Sec._4.2___Election_and_Term_of_Commission_Members. (1).doc

Good Afternoon Mayor and Commissioners,
 
I want to ensure all of you have the same information and provide some clarity on what appears to
be inaccurate information.  Over the last year and a half there has been numerous inquiries, public
records requests and false allegations surrounding term limits.  

Attached is emails, text messages, memorandums analyzing the current and former Charter
language, and current Charter language which provide clarity on this issue.  In the emails and text
messages between the former City Attorney and outside counsel Jean Olin, it is evident that there
was a lot of consideration of term limits, vacating seats, and the definition of a term for the purposes
of a term limit. Additionally, there is a text message discussion regarding a former elected official
and his ability (or not) to run for office in November 2018 and again in November 2020, this
conversation and analysis is consistent with the analysis on the current Mayor, specifically see the
text messages sent on 1/28/2018.  I have also attached a memorandum analyzing current Mayor
Anthony F. DeFillipo his length of service, the term limits and current charter language which make it
clear that he is eligible to run for office from Group 1 in November 2020.
 
If there are specific questions not answered in the attached please contact me.
 
Thank you.
 
   Sarah L. Johnston
   City Attorney
   City of North Miami Beach
   17011 NE 19th Avenue
   North Miami Beach, FL 33162
   T: (305) 948-2939 x. 2303
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From: jean olin
To: Jose Smith; Pamela.Latimore@citynmb.com
Cc: Moya Denham,Maria
Subject: Re: Probable vacancy in Martell seat
Date: Friday, March 16, 2018 10:59:35 AM


PS—Pam, wait to speak w/DOE till Comm’er Martell actually submits her resignation (we need to see effective
date).


Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain CONFIDENTIAL or PRIVILEGED information. Any unauthorized review, use,
disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by reply e-
mail and immediately destroy all copies of the original message and all attachments.
______________________________


> On Mar 16, 2018, at 10:57 AM, jean olin <jeanolin.munilaw@gmail.com> wrote:
>
> Since quorum is 5, need to fill this vacancy promptly.
> Same process per Charter section 4.5—Clerk needs to let COE know that this Group 7 seat will be on this
November’s ballot (in addition to Groups 2,4,6).  (Clerk has already informed DOE that Group 5 (Pierre) is
expected to be on this November ballot.)
>
> Jose—please let me know if you’d like me to prepare brief memo re: Group 7 vacancy for next CC agenda.
>
> Jean
>
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
> ______________________________________
>
>> On Mar 16, 2018, at 10:45 AM, Smith, Jose <Jose.Smith@citynmb.com> wrote:
>>
>>
>>
>>
>> Begin forwarded message:
>>
>>> From: "Vallejo, George" <George.Vallejo@citynmb.com>
>>> Date: March 16, 2018 at 10:40:01 AM EDT
>>> To: "Garcia, Ana" <Ana.Garcia@citynmb.com>, "Smith, Jose" <Jose.Smith@citynmb.com>, "Latimore,
Pamela" <Pamela.Latimore@citynmb.com>
>>> Cc: "Gomez, Nicole" <Nicole.Gomez@citynmb.com>
>>> Subject: Probable vacancy in Martell seat
>>>
>>> Hi all,
>>>
>>> As you know, last night Comm. Martell was offered the position of City Manager of North Bay Village.  We
need to prepare to fill the anticipated vacancy that will occur once she resigns her Commission seat in order to be
appointed CM there.  Although she has not resigned as of yet, it is likely to happen quickly.  Without her, our
Commission would be left with a minimum for a quorum and any absence would paralyze the City and keep us from
carrying out The People's business. 
>>>
>>> Therefore, I would like this topic added to the agendas of both upcoming Commission meetings next week. 
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The agenda item should be written to permit the Commission to take whatever action is necessary to appoint
someone to fill the vacancy should it occur as expected. Mr. City Attorney & Mdme. Clerk, please verify that any
required notice provisions are met so that the Commission can act during those meetings if it so chooses.  Madame
Clerk, please provide me with all information and minutes regarding the process utilized when Councilman Julien
resigned-to-run.  I also suggest you notify each of the persons who applied for the Seat 5 vacancy so they are aware
and can make it known if they are interested in this vacancy or not.
>>>
>>> Please make my colleagues aware of my request and copy them with all information you provide me.  I want all
of us ready and able to carry out our duties under the Charter. Thank you. 
>>>
>>> Warmest regards,
>>>
>>> George Vallejo
>>> Mayor
>>>
>>> For immediate assistance contact:
>>> 305-948-2986
>>> Nicole Gomez, Chief of Staff
>>> nicole.gomez@citynmb.com
>











































































































































From: Johnston, Sarah
To: M Kazan
Subject: RE: NMB eligible mayoral candidates
Date: Friday, November 22, 2019 5:08:00 PM


Good Afternoon Mr. Kazan,
 
In accordance with Charter Section 4.2 Election and Term of Commission Members (see language
included below):
 


Anthony Defillipo is eligible to run for Mayor in November 2020 because this term he is
serving will not exceed 50% of the term.
Phyllis Smith, because she has served for more than 2 consecutive 4-year terms, is not eligible
to run for Mayor in November 2020, however, upon being out of office for 2 years she would
be eligible to run for any seat.
Barbara Kramer could be eligible so long as she vacates her current seat with at least 50% of
her current term remaining.
Fortuna Smukler is eligible to run for Mayor in November 2020 if she vacates her current
term.
Paule Villard is eligible to run for Mayor in November 2020 if she vacates her current term
McKenzie Fleurimond is eligible to run for Mayor in November 2020
Michael Joseph is eligible to run for Mayor in November 2020.


 
 
Thank you – I hope this answers your question.  Please have a Happy Thanksgiving!
 
Sec. 4.2 - Election and Term of Commission Members.
A.  The members of the City Commission shall be elected from groups numbered One through Seven.


The groups shall be elected Citywide by the qualified electors of the City of North Miami Beach. The
member in Group One shall be the Mayor. At the City's general election on the first Tuesday after the
first Monday in November 2018 and at each general election every four years thereafter, the
members of City Commission running from groups 2, 4, and 6 shall be elected for four (4) year
terms. At the City's general election on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November 2020
and at each general election every four years thereafter, the members of City Commission running
from groups 1, 3, 5, and 7 shall be elected for four (4) year terms.


B.  Commencing with the 2011 general elections for groups 1, 3, 5, and 7 and with the 2013 general
elections for groups 2, 4, and 6, no person may serve as Commissioner or Mayor or any combination
thereof for more than two consecutive four-year terms, not including time served as a member of the
Commission as a result of having filled a vacancy in the Commission pursuant to Section 4.5 of the
North Miami Beach City Charter so long as such time served in filling a vacancy does not exceed
50% of that subject term. Service by a Commission member in excess of 50% of any term of office
(including those terms provided for in Charter Section 4.1) shall be considered a full term for
purposes of the term limit provisions in this section. After being out-of-office for two (2) years, he/she
may run again. Members of the Commission shall serve until their successors are elected and
qualified.


C.  Notwithstanding the above, if a person is elected to 2 consecutive terms and has not met the term
limit under the 50% provision in subsection B, he/she may only be elected to one additional term
(regardless of that person's length of service in that additional term) for completion of that particular
term limit, after which time or unless he/she is out of office for 2 years in which case he/she may run
again for the term limit.
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Sarah L. Johnston
   City Attorney
   City of North Miami Beach
   17011 NE 19th Avenue
   North Miami Beach, FL 33162
   T: (305) 948-2939 x. 2303
 


 


From: M Kazan [mailto:mikazan@msn.com] 
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2019 7:54 AM
To: Johnston, Sarah <Sarah.Johnston@citynmb.com>
Cc: Kazan-gm305 <mikazan305@gmail.com>
Subject: NMB eligible mayoral candidates
 


Sarah Johnson
City Attorney
City of North Miami Beach
Florida
 


November 22nd, 2019
 


Good morning Sarah. 
 


Hope you are doing well. Happy Thanksgiving Greetings to you and
your family. 
 


As per the current City NMB Charter, can you tell me please, among
our currently seven elected officials, which of the seven are currently
eligible to run for the office of the mayor for the City of North Miami
Beach come November 2020 if they choose to? 
 


Which are the ones that are not eligible to be a mayoral candidate for







NMB 2020? If any, why not?
 


Sincerely, 
 


Mubarak Kazan
NMB Resident
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


.
 
PLEASE NOTE: The City of North Miami Beach is a public entity subject to Chapter 119 of the Florida
Statutes concerning public records. E-mail messages are covered under such laws and thus subject
to disclosure. All e-mail sent and received is captured by our servers and kept as public record.






NMB Charter


Sec. 4.2 - Election and Term of Commission Members. 

A.  The members of the City Commission shall be elected from groups numbered One through Seven. The groups shall be elected Citywide by the qualified electors of the City of North Miami Beach. The member in Group One shall be the Mayor. At the City's general election on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November 2018 and at each general election every four years thereafter, the members of City Commission running from groups 2, 4, and 6 shall be elected for four (4) year terms. At the City's general election on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November 2020 and at each general election every four years thereafter, the members of City Commission running from groups 1, 3, 5, and 7 shall be elected for four (4) year terms. 


B.  Commencing with the 2011 general elections for groups 1, 3, 5, and 7 and with the 2013 general elections for groups 2, 4, and 6, no person may serve as Commissioner or Mayor or any combination thereof for more than two consecutive four-year terms, not including time served as a member of the Commission as a result of having filled a vacancy in the Commission pursuant to Section 4.5 of the North Miami Beach City Charter so long as such time served in filling a vacancy does not exceed 50% of that subject term. Service by a Commission member in excess of 50% of any term of office (including those terms provided for in Charter Section 4.1) shall be considered a full term for purposes of the term limit provisions in this section. After being out-of-office for two (2) years, he/she may run again. Members of the Commission shall serve until their successors are elected and qualified. 


C.  Notwithstanding the above, if a person is elected to 2 consecutive terms and has not met the term limit under the 50% provision in subsection B, he/she may only be elected to one additional term (regardless of that person's length of service in that additional term) for completion of that particular term limit, after which time or unless he/she is out of office for 2 years in which case he/she may run again for the term limit. 


Sec. 4.5 - Vacancies. 

Vacancies in elective offices of the City of North Miami Beach shall be filled by the City Commission pending the next general election, at which time an election to fill the vacancy shall be held for any remainder of the unexpired term. Provided, however, that should any vacancy occur more than one year prior to the next general election, the Commission shall have no power to fill the same; it shall be filled by a special election to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term, to be held not less than 35 days nor more than 90 days after such vacancy has occurred, except that if the vacancy is due to a resignation and a City or County-wide election is scheduled to be held during the intervening period from the resignation's filing date with the City Clerk up to and including the resignation's effective date, the special election to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term as of the resignation's effective date may occur (subject to consent of the County Elections Department and City's ability to comply with laws concerning time periods for calling elections) at either such City or County-wide election. Any person who has been appointed or elected to fill a vacancy due to resignation filed pursuant to Florida Statute section 99.012 shall be installed and take office following the date the resigning official would take office, if elected; any person who has been appointed or elected to fill a vacancy due to resignation not filed pursuant to Florida Statute section 99.012 shall be installed and take office following the effective date set forth in said resignation. Provisions related to a Special Election called pursuant to this section, including the qualifying period, shall be established in the City Resolution calling the Special Election. 



